
Regular Council Meeting – December 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 8 
 
  
 

CITY OF TAVARES 1 
MINUTES OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 2 

DECEMBER 17, 2014 3 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 4 

4:00 p.m. 5 
 6 

COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT     ABSENT 7 
 8 
Kirby Smith, Mayor   9 
Bob Grenier, Vice Mayor 10 
Lori Pfister, Councilmember          11 
Lisa Johnson, Councilmember 12 
Robert Speaks, Councilmember 13 
 14 
STAFF PRESENT 15 
 16 
John Drury, City Administrator 17 
Robert Q. Williams, City Attorney 18 
Nancy Barnett, City Clerk 19 
Bill Neron, Economic Development Director 20 
Brad Hayes, Utility Director 21 
Lori Houghton, Finance Director 22 
Chris Thompson, Public Works Director 23 
Joyce Ross, Communications Director 24 
Lori Tucker, Human Resources Director 25 
Tammey Rogers, Community Services Director 26 
Richard Keith, Fire Department 27 
Jacques Skutt, Director of Community Development 28 
Stoney Lubins, Police Chief 29 
 30 
 31 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 32 
 33 
Chaplain Carlos Colon, Fire Department gave the invocation and led those present in the Pledge 34 
of Allegiance. 35 
 36 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 37 
 38 
Mayor Smith called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.  39 
 40 
Mayor Smith noted there were hearing devices at the entrance table. He said there is a Request 41 
to Speak form for anyone who wished to speak to be given to Chief Lubins or Chief Keith.  42 
He also requested that cell phones be silenced. 43 
 44 
ll. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 45 
 46 



Regular Council Meeting – December 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 8 
 
  
 
Mayor Smith asked if there were changes to the agenda. Mr. Drury requested to add Tab 4A – 1 
Request for Community Grant from New Life Church. In addition he requested to pull Tab 4 and 2 
Tab 4A for Council discussion. 3 
 4 
MOTION 5 
 6 
Bob Grenier moved to approve the agenda with the changes and additions, seconded by 7 
Robert Speaks. The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 8 
 9 
lll. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   10 
 11 
Mayor Smith stated he had one correction for the minutes of November 19, 2014, on the second 12 
page, line 38 – change “Kirby Smith nominated Bob Grenier for Vice Mayor” to “Lori Pfister 13 
nominated Bob Grenier for Vice Mayor.” 14 
 15 
MOTION 16 
 17 
Robert Speaks moved for the approval of the minutes of November 19, 2014 and December 18 
3, 2014, with the recommended changes, seconded by Bob Grenier. The motion carried 19 
unanimously 5-0. 20 
 21 
lV. PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 22 
 23 
Mayor Smith welcomed Gwen Keough Johns, City Clerk for the City of Mt. Dora and Central East 24 
Director of the Florida Association of City Clerks, who presented the Master Municipal Clerk 25 
Certification to Deputy Clerk Susie Novack and City Clerk Nancy Barnett. Ms. Novack thanked 26 
the City Council, Mr. Drury, and Ms. Barnett for their support. Ms. Barnett thanked Council for the 27 
opportunity to serve the City and acknowledged her husband Mike Barnett who was in 28 
attendance. 29 
 30 
V. SWEARING IN BY CITY ATTORNEY AND DISCLOSURE OF EX PARTE CONTACTS 31 
 32 
None. 33 
 34 
Vl. READING OF ALL ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 35 
 36 
Ms. Barnett read the following ordinances/resolutions by title only: 37 

 38 
ORDINANCE NO. 2014-20 39 

 40 
AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TAVARES, 41 
FLORIDA, WHICH GRANTS A FRANCHISE TO SUMTER ELECTRIC 42 
COOPERATIVE FOR CONSTRUCTING, MAINTAINING AND 43 
OPERATING AN ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IN THE CITY OF 44 
TAVARES, FLORIDA; EXTENDING THE TERM OF THE FRANCHISE 45 
UNTIL DECEMBER 31, 2044; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  46 



Regular Council Meeting – December 17, 2014 
Page 3 of 8 
 
  
 

ORDINANCE 2014-21 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 17-75 AND 17-77 OF THE CITY 3 
OF TAVARES LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO 4 
STORM WATER DRAINAGE UTILITY FEES; INCREASING SAID FEE TO 5 
$7.00/ESFU AS APPROVED IN THE FISCAL YEAR 2015 ADOPTED 6 
BUDGET; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 7 
 8 

RESOLUTION 2014 - 30 9 
 10 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF TAVARES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE 11 
PROVISION OF FIRE PROTECTION SERVICES, FACILITIES AND 12 
PROGRAMS; UPDATING THE FIRE ASSESSMENT ROLL for ASSESSMENTS 13 
AGAINST ASSESSED PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY OF TAVARES 14 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2014; APPROVING THE 15 
RATE OF ASSESSMENT: APPROVING THE ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR 16 
FISCAL YEAR 2015. 17 
 18 

Vll. CONSENT AGENDA 19 

Mayor Smith asked if anyone in the audience objected to Tab 3 – State Revolving Loan 20 
Agreement Amendment #2. 21 

MOTION 22 

Bob Grenier moved to approve the Consent Agenda Tab 3 (SRF Loan Agreement 23 
Amendment 2 for the CRA Sewer Rehabilitation), seconded by Robert Speaks. The motion 24 
carried unanimously 5-0. 25 

Tab 4) Request for Assistance for Tavares Middle School Band Trip 26 

Mr. Drury stated Council funded $2500 for a Community Grant Program and recently a policy was 27 
approved to award grants to 501C3 community programs through an application process. He 28 
noted staff is in the process of advertising the program and will collect applications for the next 30 29 
days. He stated that during this time an application has been received from the Booster Club for 30 
the Tavares Middle School which had been put on Consent. Staff has reviewed the application 31 
and determined that it does not comply with the 501C3 criteria. He noted another application has 32 
also been received from New Life Church. 33 

Councilmember Pfister referred to the previous meeting when the Babe Ruth Travel Policy was 34 
approved and noted not all children play sports. She said she had been approached by Mrs. 35 
Garcia regarding the Middle School Band trip. She said only three schools had been invited in the 36 
State of Florida to perform at an upcoming conference and she was proud they are in Tavares. 37 
She said she did not think not having the 501C3 should make a difference. 38 

Mary Garcia – Tavares resident 39 



Regular Council Meeting – December 17, 2014 
Page 4 of 8 
 
  
 
 1 

Ms. Garcia said she is President of the Middle School Band Boosters. She said the Music 2 
Educators Convention is the largest in the United States and it is also a learning opportunity for 3 
the children. 4 

Councilmember Johnson congratulated Ms. Garcia. She made some suggestions for funding 5 
raising and but noted the City needed to follow its due process in the grant application process. 6 
Mayor Smith suggested that Ms. Garcia contact the Lake County Commissioners and the School 7 
Board. Vice Mayor Grenier asked Ms. Garcia to leave her contact information. 8 

MOTION 9 

Lori Pfister moved to give the Band Boosters $250.00 towards their trip, seconded by Bob 10 
Grenier. 11 

Councilmember Pfister asked Council to support this request as the Tavares Middle School is the 12 
City’s school. 13 

The motion failed 4-1 as follows: 14 

Kirby Smith   No 15 
Bob Grenier   No 16 
Robert Speaks  No 17 
Lisa Johnson   No 18 
Lori Pfister   Yes 19 
 20 

Tab 4A – Request from New Life Church to Buy Food for Low Income Children 21 

Councilmember Pfister said she did not support the request as the local food banks have other 22 
methods for acquiring food donations. Mayor Smith said the grant procedure has not been 23 
followed and he would prefer to go through that process. 24 

MOTION 25 

Robert Speaks moved to deny the request, seconded by Lisa Johnson. The motion carried 26 
5-0 as follows: 27 

Kirby Smith   Yes 28 
Bob Grenier   Yes 29 
Robert Speaks  Yes 30 
Lisa Johnson   Yes 31 
Lori Pfister   Yes 32 
 33 

Vlll. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 34 



Regular Council Meeting – December 17, 2014 
Page 5 of 8 
 
  
 
RESOLUTlONS 1 

Tab 7) Resolution #2014-30 – Update of Fire Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2015 2 

Ms. Houghton presented the resolution updating the Fire Assessment Roll to agree with the 3 
current 2015 Budget. Ordinance #2012-14 authorized the collection of fire assessments for 4 
properties located within the City of Tavares with a current utility bill. The ordinance also 5 
authorized Council to approve an assessment roll for each budget year. The initial assessment 6 
roll was prepared under Resolution #2012-13 and approved by Council on October 3, 2012. Fire 7 
Assessments were included and adopted in the fiscal year 2015 budget. This resolution provides 8 
for an updated assessment roll required by the ordinance. The assessment roll is on file in the 9 
office of the City Clerk. She noted it also divides the customer class by commercial, residential, 10 
industrial, and institutional.  11 

MOTION 12 

Robert Speaks move to approve Resolution #2014-30, seconded by Bob Grenier. The 13 
motion carried unanimously 5-0. 14 

Tab 8) Request to Add Additional Catering Companies from Lake County to Provide 15 
Catering Services for the Pavilion on the Lake 16 
 17 
Ms. Rogers reviewed the process that had been followed to advertise for companies a year ago 18 
to provide catering. Ten companies replied to the mandatory pre-bid meeting, however, only four 19 
submitted response packets. The City is under contract with those four companies.  The City also 20 
offers “off the list” catering wherein the client pays the city $500 for the option of hiring off this list 21 
of approved caterers. Staff is recommending now to re-open the catering bid and advertise for 22 
Lake County catering companies only, with elimination of the option to pay the $500 to hire a 23 
different caterer. The vetting process under this option has proved to be inefficient. The same 24 
criteria would need to be followed in the new bid for Lake companies. 25 
 26 
Discussion followed with consensus to support the new bid for Lake County caterers. There was 27 
discussion regarding advertising. Mr. Drury discussed the issue of insurance requirements which 28 
some of the smaller companies do not always carry. Councilmember Pfister noted the deposit 29 
may be a challenge for smaller companies. Mr. Drury stated this will be an effort to focus on Lake 30 
County caterers only. Mayor Smith asked Ms. Rogers to contact the Tavares Chamber of 31 
Commerce who should be able to reach out to all of the local chambers to help to promote this 32 
opportunity. 33 
 34 
MOTION 35 
 36 
Robert Speaks moved to approve agenda Tab 8 for the request for going out and getting 37 
additional catering bids, seconded by Lisa Johnson. The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 38 
 39 
lX. OLD BUSINESS 40 
 41 
Charter Schools 42 



Regular Council Meeting – December 17, 2014 
Page 6 of 8 
 
  
 
 1 
Councilmember Pfister asked the status of the research on charter schools. Attorney Williams 2 
said the City can legally be a sponsor of a chartered school. He said there is a significant process 3 
to develop a charter school which requires the retention of experts and significant investment but 4 
it can be done. He noted that the City of Leesburg had looked into this some years back and the 5 
Villages support a charter school. 6 
 7 
Councilmember Pfister asked if further research could be done such as  what credentials are 8 
required; what needs to be done to start the process; etc. Mr. Drury said it will be put on an 9 
upcoming agenda. He said he will prepare a summary with the City Attorney and provide the 10 
process and the cost of a municipality setting up a charter school. This will probably be for the 11 
February meeting.  12 
 13 
X. NEW BUSINESS 14 
 15 
Mural on Side of County Clerk Building 16 
 17 
Vice Mayor Grenier said the mural on the County Clerk building is fading and needs repainting. 18 
He said he wanted to know the cost of repainting it. Mr. Drury noted the City is also in process of 19 
moving forward to acquire the building however he will obtain that information. 20 
 21 
Attorney Williams said he remembered there being an Interlocal agreement with the County and 22 
that some of the costs had been shared between the City and the County. 23 
  24 
Xl. AUDIENCE TO BE HEARD   25 
Mayor Smith invited comment from the audience. 26 
 27 
Betty Burleigh, Tavares resident 28 
 29 
Ms. Burleigh stated on this date in 1968 from 3:00 a.m. to daylight the temperature dropped to 22 30 
degrees and 19 degrees in some of the low pocket areas and there was concern by the citrus 31 
growers. She wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year. 32 
 33 
Xll. REPORTS 34 
Tab 14) City Administrator 35 
 36 
Mr. Drury noted Ms. Novack has been his “left hand”; she has pitched in to help him and it has 37 
been great to work with her. He thanked Ms. Farrell and Mr. Graham for welcoming the 10,000th 38 
seaplane in true Tavares fashion. He noted there were three generations on the flight: a father, 39 
grandfather and grandson. He noted the next Council meeting will be January 21, 2015 and he 40 
wished everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year. 41 
 42 
City Clerk 43 
 44 
Ms. Barnett said she had been remiss in not acknowledging Ms. Novack in her remarks earlier. 45 
She said Ms. Novack is her right hand, is wonderful at her job, and she could not do her job 46 
without her. She said Ms. Novack has been a great support. 47 



Regular Council Meeting – December 17, 2014 
Page 7 of 8 
 
  
 
 1 
Human Resources 2 
Ms. Tucker wished everyone a Happy New Year. 3 
 4 
Public Works 5 
Mr. Thompson wished everyone Happy Holidays. 6 
 7 
Utilities  8 
Mr. Hayes wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year. 9 
 10 
Public Communications  11 
Ms. Ross advised that the City celebrated its 10,000th Seaplane landing yesterday.  12 
 13 
Police Chief 14 
 15 
Fire Chief 16 
 17 
Community Services Director 18 
 19 
Finance Director 20 
Ms. Houghton wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year. 21 
 22 
Community Services 23 
 24 
Economic Development 25 
Mr. Neron noted there had been many skeptics when the City started development on the 26 
seaplane base and the City is now averaging close to 200 seaplane landings a month. 27 
 28 
City Attorney 29 
Attorney Williams said the worst part about being the City Attorney is having to deal with all the 30 
paperwork and files and Tavares has the benefit of not only Ms. Barnett but also Ms. Novack and 31 
they make his job very easy. He said a lot of cities refer their public records requests to their city 32 
attorneys which Ms. Barnett is able to handle for the City. 33 
 34 
Tab 15) City Council 35 
 36 
Councilmember Pfister 37 
Councilmember Pfister wished Ms. Barnett congratulations on her achievement noting she is an 38 
asset to the City. 39 
 40 
Vice Mayor Grenier 41 
Vice Mayor Grenier noted he has known Ms. Barnett for a long time and she is a staple at the 42 
City now. 43 
 44 
Vice Mayor Grenier noted he had a good time at the parade and it was nice to see the donations 45 
made by the participants. He noted the significance of the 10,000th seaplane landing in 2014 46 
when the first one landed in 1914. He commented that in 1862 the current image of Santa Claus 47 



Regular Council Meeting – December 17, 2014 
Page 8 of 8 
 
  
 
was illustrated by a German illustrator, Thomas Nast, for Harpers Weekly. It was done for 1 
Christmas Eve in 1862 but did not appear on the cover until January 3, 1863. 2 
 3 
Councilmember Speaks 4 
Councilmember Speaks commended the Tavares staff. He said the staff has done a fabulous job 5 
and it is great to see the staff working together as a team. He said he had a good time judging the 6 
Christmas parade. He said he enjoyed the Holly Jolly event and he commended Ms. Rogers and 7 
her department. He wished everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year. 8 
 9 
Councilmember Johnson 10 
Councilmember Johnson commended Ms. Barnett and Ms. Novack noting that Ms. Barnett had 11 
helped her with paperwork requirements. She thanked Mayor Smith for nominating her to the 12 
MPO Board and said she had attended her first meeting and found it very interesting. She 13 
commended the staff on the Holly Jolly party and congratulated the Public Works staff for winning 14 
the door contest. She said she had the honor of meeting with Ms. Houghton and her finance staff 15 
this week and learned the many functions of that department. She said she also got to meet with 16 
Mr. Skutt and his department and she was impressed to learn about what each department does. 17 
She wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year. 18 
 19 
Mayor Smith 20 
Mayor Smith said he was privileged to experience the joyful reunion of a veteran (home from 21 
Afghanistan) with his family during the parade. He thanked Chief Keith for facilitating that event. 22 
He said the Holly Jolly luncheon was wonderful. He said on this day in 1903 at 10:36 a.m. the 23 
Wright Brothers flew their first sustained flight path and in honor of that momentous occasion 24 
today is National Wright Brothers Day. He wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New 25 
Year and asked everyone to be careful and to love each other. 26 
 27 
Adjournment 28 
There was no further business and the meeting was adjourned at 4:57 p.m. 29 
 30 
Respectfully submitted, 31 
 32 
 33 
 34 
Nancy A. Barnett, M.M.C. 35 
City Clerk 36 
 37 


